
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

November 5, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Shaun Lagueux, Betsy Schneider, Rick Alpers, Paul 

Manganiello, and Town Administrator Michael Capone.   

The meeting was called to order at 6:00PM. 

Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from October 22, 2015 and 

October 29, 2015 seconded by Ms. Schneider. The Board voted 4-0-1 in favor of approving the minutes 

from October 22nd.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of approving the minutes from October 29th. 

Consent agenda: Mr. Lagueux made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated November 5, 2015 

to include the items named therein, seconded by Mr. Alpers.  Mr. Manganiello asked if a Taser goes with 

every officer when he leaves as there is a Taser listed on the manifest. Mr. Lagueux commented that 

there was a malfunction with one Taser. With no further questions, the Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion to approve the consent agenda.  

Economic Development Committee: 

Mrs. Cote informed the Board that this discussion is in regards to the recommendations given by the 

Economic Development Task Force to approve a brochure and to create an Economic Development 

Committee.  Mr. Alpers commented that Paul Fraser thought that the Board should choose Amy Lyn’s 

design. Mr. Alpers would like the phrase “hidden gem” used in Amy Lyn’s brochure and also to use some 

of the information that is helpful from the other brochure.  Mr. Lagueux asked if these are two 

competing fliers. Mrs. Cote replied that they are not and that both have value. Mrs. Cote suggested that 

an insert could be placed inside the brochure for more details. Mr. Capone commented that the 

information can be mixed and matched between the two brochures without too much trouble. Mr. 

Manganiello commented that the Planning Board is wrapping up some Master Plan elements and once 

the final report is in some of the information can be incorporated.  Mr. Capone replied that the Master 

Plan will not be completed until later next year.  Mr. Alpers commented that this is more of a marketing 

piece.  Mr. Alpers suggested that the new committee could work on a business directory. Mr. Capone 

commented that if the brochure is produced the Board needs to determine how to distribute it and how 

to budget for that.  Mr. Capone suggested that the brochure be available on the town web site.  Mrs. 

Cote commented that the brochure should be given to the area Chamber of Commerce and to Grafton 

County Economic Development. They can also be placed in the town offices. Ms. Schneider suggested 

giving them to real estate offices. Mr. Alpers commented that it would cost around $400 -$500 to print 

copies to get started. Ms. Schneider commented that the brochure should be more business oriented 

and more bullet points should be used. Mrs. Cote commented that the pictures of the downtown should 

be more recent ones. Mr. Capone replied that the pictures can be revisited.  Mr. Lagueux commented 

that the final version of Scott’s brochure should be produced and to get it out into the community. 



Mrs. Cote asked what the goal should be for a new committee.  Mr. Alpers commented that the basic 

structure should be a five member committee comprised of one member of the Select Board, the Town 

Administrator, and three members of the public.  The members from the public should have a business 

background. Mr. Capone commented that once the new committee is organized, they can start by 

meeting with the Central New Hampshire Chamber of Commerce and the Lakes Region Planning 

Commission as they are happy to help. Mr. Alpers suggested that he can draft up a charge for the 

committee for the next Board meeting.  Mr. Lagueux made a motion to establish the Bristol Economic 

Development Committee consisting of three members of the public, one Select Board member, and the 

Town Administrator. The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion.  Mr. Alpers commented that the charge will give some direction but will be as broad as possible 

and not as rigid as the charge for the Task Force.  Mr. Alpers suggested that thank you letters be sent to 

the members of the Economic Development Task Force. Mr. Capone replied that he would take care of 

that.  

Town Administrator’s Report:  

Veteran’s Day is Wednesday the 11th. The VFW will have a ceremony in the square at 9:45.  

Metrocast sent correspondence regarding a rate change and a scheduled maintenance on broadband 

internet. 

The update in regards to the tax rate: the corrected materials from the SAU have been received by DRA 

and the town should hear from DRA in the next few days. The Board just needs to decide if the fund 

balance will be used to offset the rate. 

Select Board Items:   

Ms. Schneider asked for an update regarding the toilet for the police department.  Mr. Capone replied 

that he has two other quotes from plumbers and the prices for the toilets are very high compared to a 

toilet that was found online.  There is a $400-$700 difference in pricing but the cost for shipping needs 

to be looked at and if there would be a restocking fee should the toilet not fit.   

Mr. Lagueux commented that he is still getting requests to address the issue regarding Jeffers Road. Mr. 

Lagueux suggested that Colin Brown be contacted in regards to this. Mrs. Cote replied that this issue 

needs to be resolved and she is okay with Mr. Lagueux calling Colin Brown. 

Mr. Alpers received an email from John Sellers regarding Mr. Sellers’ concerns with their interaction at 

the last Select Board meeting.  Mr. Alpers apologized for upsetting Mr. Sellers.  

Mr. Alpers commented that the new web site for the TTCC looks greats.  

Mr. Alpers commented that Halloween was great this year. Mr. Alpers commended the Decorating 

Committee, the Events Committee, the TTCC, and the Masons for all their work and that it was great to 

see all the kids and families downtown. 



Mr. Alpers commented that it was Town Administrator Michael Capone’s last Select Board meeting. Mr. 

Alpers stated that Mr. Capone has done quite a bit of work over the last five years and has completed 

more than any other Town Administrator that Bristol has had. Mr. Capone is always looking out for the 

best interest of the community. Mr. Alpers thanked Mr. Capone for everything he has done and wishes 

him the best.  Mr. Capone commented that it has been an honor and a privilege to serve Bristol. 

Mr. Manganiello heard from a resident with regards to the plan for Northern Pass.  Mr. Manganiello 

gave the resident the information from the status report from a previous Board meeting. 

Mr. Manganiello commented that the Planning Board is only meeting twice more this year and that they 

are working on the Land Use Chapter of the Master Plan. 

Mr. Lagueux commented that CIP is presenting their plan to the Budget Committee on Monday night. 

Mr. Alpers asked how many days the town has to apply for intervenors status.  Mr. Capone replied that 

it is within 45 days after the application is approved. There is still time. Mr. Capone informed the Board 

that the hard copy of the Northern Pass application is in a box in his office. The application is 20,000 

pages long. 

Mrs. Cote thanked Mr. Capone for his service to the town. 

Public Comment:   

Barbara Greenwood commented that as an Events Committee member, she has never seen so many 

people downtown on Halloween. It was spectacular. Mrs. Greenwood commented that the library had a 

full house on Tuesday night for the POW program.  Mrs. Greenwood thanked Mr. Capone for all his help 

with the library addition project. 

John Sellers commented that every time he has asked Mr. Capone for something he has delivered it and 

he appreciates his help.  Mr. Sellers thanked Mr. Alpers for his apology. Mr. Sellers commented that he 

is meeting with the fire chief to look at the ambulance contract.  Mr. Sellers asked if the town has a 

maintenance person and if there was a line item for the position.  Mr. Capone replied that there is a line 

item and that the position has been cobbled together. The town has never been able to have it be a full 

time position and that it is difficult to keep the part time position filled. The position is more seasonal 

and there needs to be enough projects to keep the person busy over the winter. 

Select Board Work Session: 

Kelly Lacasse sent the Board a spreadsheet with notes pertaining to the health insurance comparison of 

costs and benefits for the upcoming year. Ms. Lacasse informed the Board that Health Trust rates went 

up by 9.2%.  There is no return of premiums this year from Health Trust. Interlocal Trust rates came in 

with much lower costs. There is a $31,000 savings between Interlocal Trust and Health Trust with the 

same deductibles and the same coverage from both. There is a difference in the copay for specialty 

services and the prescription piece offers a different plan. Interlocal Trust offers both retail and mail 

order options and has lower tiers for prescriptions.  Ms. Lacasse informed the Board that she met with 



department heads and they agreed with the proposal to use Interlocal Trust for health insurance. 

Interlocal Trust uses a calendar year and the town could start with them on February 1st. Interlocal Trust 

will honor the rates. The town has a requirement to notify employees 60 days in advance of a change in 

health plans.  

 Mr. Lagueux commented that on the surface he doesn’t know why the town wouldn’t go with Interlocal 

Trust as the changes are minimal in coverage.  Mr. Alpers commented that the town has used Interlocal 

Trust before.  Ms. Schneider commented that she thinks it strange that the Interlocal Trust rates came 

down so much. Ms. Lacasse replied that the rates are not that much higher than last year and that the 

calendar year will benefit the budget process as the renewal rates will be available by September 30th. 

Mr. Alpers asked if employees use the flexible spending plan at all.  Ms. Lacasse replied that there hasn’t 

been much interest in it as people don’t quite understand the benefit to it. Mr. Capone commented that 

Harvard Pilgrim gets high marks for its administration and that they partner with Walgreens not CVS for 

prescriptions.  Mr. Capone informed that Board that by changing plans there will be a $27,000 savings 

below the current premium if we are able to switch to the new plan by February 1, 2016.  This will 

continue the downward trend in premiums over the past few years which have totaled around 

$100,000. 

Mr. Lagueux made a motion to accept Interlocal Trust/Harvard Pilgrim for the upcoming year for 

medical coverage, seconded by Ms. Schneider. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion. 

Mr. Capone provided the Board the latest budget vs. actual report and the latest updated revenue 

report for reference. 

Mr. Lagueux asked if there will be any more hits on the Legal line. Mr. Capone there is a couple of basic 

things and that it depends on the timing. There could still be a motion to reconsider filed by the 

Plaintiffs in the Beach Case. . Mr. Capone commented that he does not think much would happen with 

that even if there was reconsideration. Depending on how a couple other things go, there could be 

another $3,000-$5,000 needed for Legal. 

Mr. Capone informed the Board that the department heads were asked to submit their budgets by 

November 17th, instead of the 20th, so that an effort could be made to get the Budgets to the Board prior 

to the November 19th meeting.  

Ms. Schneider asked if the school tax rate issue lingers will there be any cash flow problems. Mr. Capone 

replied that the school will not be getting their payment if there is a problem.  Mr. Alpers commented 

that DRA would have to get involved at some point.  Mr. Alpers asked if all six towns are waiting also. 

Mr. Capone replied that they are all waiting for the SAU numbers.  Mr. Capone commented that the 

County bill of over $700,000 is due by December 17th and the town may run into a cash flow jam but he 

would rather pay the County bill when it’s due. 

Mr. Lagueux asked what the Board will need to use out of the reserve to lower the tax rate by 10 cents. 

Mr. Capone replied that for every $47,043 from the reserve lowers the tax rate by 10 cents. Mr. Lagueux 

asked what is in the reserve.  Mr. Capone replied that there is $1,006,837 in the reserve. 



Mr. Lagueux asked if there were any ideas in terms if salaries and if the Board is looking at addressing 

rates in terms of the scale or merit based at a certain percent.  Mr. Manganiello commented that 

according to the data presented, there are some employees so far below the range that the town needs 

to get those employees up to where they should be.  Mr. Lagueux agreed that the ranges do need 

addressing but that the town should not take a hit all at once in one year.  Mr. Capone informed the 

Board that the numbers are being put together in regards to the dollar amount needed for the range 

issue. Mr. Lagueux commented that a supplemental payment could be an option to increase those 

salaries that are below range. 

Mrs. Cote asked if the budget is adjusted for the merit increase.  Mr. Capone replied that it is and that 

the 27th pay period line is at zero and the merit wage line went to zero also.  Ms. Schneider asked how 

the employees felt about the merit wage.  Mr. Capone replied that the process was well received and 

that there does need to be a few tweaks made to the ranges. The reviews need to be done differently as 

the challenge was that the reviews were done in March and the increases did not go into place until May 

or June. The reviews need to be done earlier.  Mr. Alpers commented that the town needs to do either 

the merit raise or the range adjustments but not both. The town needs to remain competitive in the 

employment field. 

Mr. Alpers presented the Board with his budget ideas.  The Downtown Decoration Committee should be 

given a $3,000-$5,000 budget on a yearly basis to allow them to purchase supplies that will be owned by 

the town.  The costs for the spring cleanup should be included in the Kelley Park budget. Central Street 

still needs water/sewer upgrades and the sidewalks need to be extended.  The summer maintenance 

position needs to be funded through the winter months as there needs to be someone to shovel, salt, 

and sand the ramps and to do indoor painting projects. The town web site needs an update so a cost for 

doing that needs to be discussed.   

Mr. Alpers commented that a part-time Economic Development Coordinator should be considered in 

the future.  Mr. Lagueux commented that this could be a shared position with other neighboring towns. 

Mr. Capone replied that this has been discussed and that the surrounding communities would benefit 

from that position. 

Mr. Alpers commented that before the recession the town used to give $25 gift cards to the employees 

at Christmas time. This got cut out and Mr. Alpers would like to see this reinstated in the budget. Mr. 

Capone commented that there are about 50 employees and the cost would be about $1,250. 

Mr. Manganiello commented that the town needs to have fireworks in the budget. Mr. Alpers 

commented that this will be a warrant article.  Mrs. Cote commented that maybe the fireworks should 

be part of the budget and not a warrant article. 

Mr. Manganiello commented that the town should continue funding the contingency fund and the 

building maintenance fund out of the fund balance and that these should continue as warrant articles. 

Funds should only be appropriated if money was spent last year. 



Mr. Lagueux commented that there need to be some adjustments made to some budget line items. Mr. 

Capone replied that the line item adjustments do not have to be done the way the budget is set up. The 

quick math shows that there is the potential to have a surplus of $200,000 this year, but it is really too 

early to count on that.   

Mr. Capone drafted warrant article language based on the 2016 CIP proposals. If all the proposals are 

approved that amount would be $307,500 which is slightly less than the amount of Warrant Article 

approved at last years’ Town meeting.  

Ms. Schneider asked if anything has to be done with accrued wages.  Mr. Capone replied that something 

will have to be done with that as the accrued wages will be basically gone by the end of the year. 

Mr. Capone commented that the capital reserve accounts will have to go in the budget as they typically 

become a line item in the operating budget once they are set up by warrant article. 

Mr. Capone informed the Board that they should think about the Utility Appraisal line. The contracted 

service costs $12,000 per year to do the utility appraisal work.  Mr. Sansoucy will continue to hold his 

price for the next year and Mr. Capone suggests continuing with his services.  

The statistical reevaluation numbers will come in under what was originally estimated.  Mr. Capone 

suggests keeping the extra money in the fund for the full list and measure that needs to be done over 

the next five years.  

Mr. Capone informed the Board that the best estimate for next year’s Legal line is $56,000. Mr. Capone 

commented that the Legal line consists of $15,000 in general, $16,000 for Sansoucy,  $10,000 for PSNH, 

$7,500 for Fairpoint, and $7,500 for the New Hampshire Electric Co-op.  Mr. Alpers asked if Northern 

Pass money is needed.  Mr. Capone replied that the line could be rounded to $60,000 and includes 

$4,000 for potential work on Northern Pass.  

Mr. Lagueux asked if any department heads have given any heads up regarding any budget issues.  Mr. 

Capone replied no they have not and they are just looking at the wage scales. 

Mr. Capone commented that a conversation needs to be had with Mark Bucklin in regards to any work 

that needs to be done to the Highway building.  Mr. Alpers commented that the building needs a new 

bathroom.  

Mr. Alpers commented that the Board needs to put a price on the web site upgrade and suggested 

putting out an RFP for this. 

Mr. Capone commented that the Board needs to look at an RFP for audit services for next year. Mr. 

Alpers suggested putting this on the list serve to see the numbers for this. 

Mr. Capone commented that Peter did an excellent job with the summer maintenance position and has 

interest in this position through the winter. More money can be placed in the supply line for paint and 

other supplies for this position. 



Mr. Alpers asked if Mark got a price for adding the downtown landscape work to the Kelley Park fee. Mr. 

Capone replied that he will check with Mark on this.  Ms. Schneider asked what the green space entails. 

Mr. Alpers replied that the median area, TD Bank, all the trees, and spring cleanup are included but not 

the watering. 

Mr. Manganiello commented that he is glad to see the Highway Department Reserve Fund reestablished 

from 1968.  Mr. Capone commented that he found no record of this ever being voted on by the town 

but there is an RSA that makes the fund official. 

Mr. Capone informed that Board that his goal is to plan to come back for the Board meeting on 

November 19th and for the joint Budget/Board meeting on December 5th. 

With no other business to come before the Board, at 8:24PM Mr. Lagueux made a motion to go into 

non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a), (b), (d) and (e), seconded by Ms. Schneider.  A roll call vote was 

held. The motion carried by a vote of 5-0. 

At 8:57PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The 

Board voted 5-0 in favor of adjournment. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair                  Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Paul Manganiello, Select Board                    Betsy Schneider, Select Board 

 

_____________________________ 

Rick Alpers, Select Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 


